


                     GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
                    REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

                    Tuesday, December 12, 2017 – 6:00pm 
                    Takiff Center - Community Hall

Consistent with the requirements of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 5 ILCS 120/1 
through 120/6 (Open Meetings Act), notices of this meeting were posted. 

Meeting Location:  Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, IL 60022 

A G E N D A 
I. Call to Order   

II. Roll Call 
III. Consent Agenda Items 

A. Minutes of November 21, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 
B. Minutes of December 5, 2017 Special Board Meeting 
C. Approval of the Bills 

IV. Matters from the Public 
V. Financial Report

VI. Staff Reports 
A.  Business 
B. Recreation and Facilities 
C. Parks and Maintenance 
D. Marketing and Communications 

VII. Executive Director Report 
VIII. Action Items 

A. Approval of Ordinance No. 877: An Ordinance Establishing an Updated Sexual 
Harassment Policy for the Glencoe Park District in Order to Comply with Public Act 
100-0554

IX. Strategic Plan Workshop 
X. Matters from the Public 

XI. Other Business 
XII. Executive Session 

A. Personnel 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
XIII. Adjournment 

The Glencoe Park District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or 
facilities, are asked to contact the Park District at 847-835-3030. Executive Director Email: 
lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com  



III. Consent Agenda Items
Section 2.06(b) of the Open Meetings Act allows a public entity to approve

minutes either within 30 days after the relevant meeting OR at the public body’s
second subsequent regular meeting, whichever is LATER. For consistency, all

minutes will be approved at the subsequent Regular Board Meeting.

Items on the Consent Agenda are representative of routine actions by the Board
of Directors or staff. Members of the Board of Park Commissioners are invited
and encouraged to call the Executive Director prior to the meeting with any

questions about consent agenda items.

The Board President asks for a motion to adopt the consent agenda items.
However, if any member of the Board wishes to discuss any item on the consent
agenda, for any reason whatsoever, he or she may ask that the item be removed

from the consent agenda and the President will change the agenda per the
request.

The Executive Director recommends approval of the consent agenda.

Glencoe Park District
December 2017 Board Meeting



DRAFT

MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 21, 2017 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS 60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Josh Lutton, Treasurer Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Stefanie Boron, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Steve Gaines, Commissioner Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
      Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant 

Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke: Cameron Avery, Lynn 
Donaldson, Dan Dorfman, Diane Greening, Betsy Leibson, Todd Marver 

Consent Agenda: A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve the consent 
agenda items as presented including Minutes of The October 17, 2017 Regular Board 
Meeting, November 7, 2017 Committee of the Whole Meeting, Surplus Property 
Ordinance No. 875, and Approval of the Bills. Commissioner Lutton seconded the 
motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 

Matters from the Public: There was no one wishing to address the Board. 

Truth in Taxation Hearing: An Ordinance Levying the Taxes for the Glencoe Park 
District, Cook County, IL for 2017: President Onderdonk opened the hearing. Director 
Mensinger stated the Ordinance allows us to collect taxes and must be filed with the 
County Clerk’s office by the end of December. We will not know the final extension until 
July when we will find out what the tax increase will be. The Budget and Appropriations 
Ordinance in March is the next step allowing us to spend the money. No members of 
the public asked questions or offered comments. President Onderdonk closed the 
hearing.

Approval of Ordinance No. 876: Levying the Taxes for the 2017 Tax Year: A motion was 
made by Commissioner Gaines to approve Ordinance No. 876 – Levying the Taxes for 
the 2017 Tax Year as presented. Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. No 
discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 



2

Financial Report: Director Mensinger stated we are eight months into the fiscal year. No 
surprises, we are consistent with the last few fiscal years. Recreation department and 
daycare revenues are up, too early to tell with Watts, and the Beach did not generate as 
much revenue as last year, although last year had amazing weather.

Partnership with Friends of the Green Bay Trail, Village, and Park District on Green Bay 
Trail Landscape Restoration: Betsy Leibson, Cameron Avery, and Diane Greening of 
Friends of the Green Bay Trail reviewed the restoration project that they will be working 
on with the Park District and Village. The restoration project is the area from the tennis 
courts at the north end of the Community Garden to South Avenue. They reviewed 
handouts provided in the packet, which included the history of the project, land 
ownership, stipulations for project success, project detail, cost, and stewardship.

The Park District will work with FOGBT, Village, and a contractor in evasive removal, 
replanting, and ongoing stewardship. The Park District and Village agreed to each pay 
for half of the stewardship for five years, not to exceed $10,000 a year. The current 
estimate is less than $5,000 per entity per year.

Executive Director Sheppard stated this would be included in the Park District budget 
this year. We will have a community meeting on December 13 to share the presentation 
with the neighbors. 

Discussion on the Breakwater Sculpture: Executive Director Sheppard informed the 
Board that a news article on the sculpture put us in touch with the original donor. 
Following discussion with the donor, Sheppard and President Onderdonk acquired an 
approximate restoration cost from Barry (Barry Tinsley, “Breakwater” artist) for which 
the donor offered to pay up to $5,000 for a restoration effort.

Director Leiner reported that Barry recommended welding all joints that are currently 
bolted, resetting the south end of the structure on the existing footings, and welding 
rusted out weep holes.

Sheppard stated she spoke to PDRMA about the restoration. As long as the piece is 
restored back to its original integrity when it was donated, the restoration would meet 
their requirements. The artist’s estimates the fixes will last another 40 years. The 
sculpture is currently 35 years old. There are no engineering costs in addition to the 
price quoted. The refurbishment timeframe estimate is a week, but there may be 
additional work needed if they discover further decay during restoration. The artist will 
waive his fee if the work takes longer than a week. His price has been negotiated down 
from the first proposal and we believe it is a reasonable rate. Discussion ensued.

The Board reached consensus for the Executive Director to spend up to $4,000 on 
“Breakwater” sculpture repairs. 

Staff Reports: Staff shared additional information not included in their Board Reports.



3

Director Mensinger shared the busy time of year with budget and capital projects in 
progress. TimeClock Pro is a process to setup, but we have achieved hurdles. 

Director Collins informed the Board that Adam Wohl will start next week as our 
Takiff/Watts Facility Manager. He will concentrate on getting fitness, personal training, 
etc. ready for Glencoe Fitness to open. Adam stood out in the pool of candidates with a 
vast facility and recreation background. Watts is ready to open on Friday. The Parks 
Team did a phenomenal job to make sure the facility was ready for a week of training for 
new Zamboni drivers. There have been no mechanical issues so far. We are hoping for 
cold, cloudy weather at about 30-35 degrees. Adam’s background does not include ice 
rink management, but he did run two outdoor pools.  

Director Leiner said it is a fun time of year getting the ice rink open for the season and 
wrapping up at the beach, athletic fields, and parks. The fitness area was carpeted this 
week, equipment delivery is scheduled for early December, bathrooms are coming 
together, and the feeling is completely different from a performing arts space. Parking lot 
projects are preparing to have asphalt installed on the east parking lot next week adding 
35 parking spots once complete. 

While working on the back lot last week, we discovered an underground storage tank 
that was previously used to hold either heating oil or gasoline. There are mandatory 
state reporting expectations to execute prior to removing the tanks and we are working 
with PDRMA to accomplish this. There is no delay at this point other than weather. 
Based on discussion with former staff it has been out of service since before 1974. Run 
of the mill change orders like electric lines relocated, thickened concrete, and tree 
stumps under the skate park asphalt have been executed.  

The Village is wrapping up the beach project in regards to moving the pipe. There will 
be refurbishing of lockers due to the construction. 

Manager Maassen reported that the winter brochure went out today. The Merry and 
Bright special event is tomorrow from 4:00-6:00pm with live music, pony rides, face 
painting, hay mazes, etc. New wayfinding signs are displayed both inside and out with 
more to come. 

The Safety and Wellness Committee reported that the committee keeps meeting and 
holding safety training with staff throughout  the course of the year. A name change to 
Safety and Wellness Committee including wellness for both staff and the community 
mirrors what the committee already executes. All staff are trained on AED and first aid. 

Executive Director Report: Executive Director Sheppard shared that Bobby and Chris’s 
teams are doing a lot of work to get Watts Ice Center up and running despite staffing 
issues. Late falling leaves followed by rain is proving a challenge in making good ice this 
year. This Friday is our Black Ice Friday special event at Watts. 

Glencoe Fitness will be Adam’s biggest focus. Equipment will be delivered December 
14, staff will be trained on the equipment on December 15 and preview dates will be on 



4

December 16 from 11:00am-2:00pm, December 18 from 9:00am-7:00pm, and 
December 27 from 9:00am-7:00pm. Group tours on other dates can be scheduled. The 
opening celebration is on Saturday, December 30. The first 100 who sign up will get a 
free T-shirt. Tuesday, January 2 will be open in full operation open Monday-Friday 
5:30a-9:00p and Saturday-Sunday 7:00a-5:00p with childcare Monday-Friday from 
9:00a-noon. Reserve childcare timeslots online from 9-10:30a and 10:30a-12:00p for $9 
per 1.5 hours or a 10 punch pass for $60. Parents must remain in the building. 
Members get a discount on group exercise classes. All age groups have been joining 14 
and up. Members will get a free month in January 2018 if they join during December. 

Our Staff appreciation party is on December 15 at Deerfield Golf Club. 

Conference is January 18-20; the early bird registration deadline is December 4. The 
expo hall is open Thursday and Friday. 

Director Collins reviewed Watts concession operations and found it hard to succeed 
financially at the location. It is more cost effective to offer a Keurig Machine and sell 
coffee and hot chocolate pods and have a vending machine for chips and candy. 

Action Items: 

Approval of the Wellness Policy: A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to 
approve the Wellness Policy as presented. Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion, 
which passed by unanimous voice vote. No discussion ensued. 

Approval of the Altamanu, Inc. agreement for the schematic design, design 
development, construction documents, and construction management support for 
Phase D of the Takiff Center Parking Master Plan: Executive Director Sheppard stated 
that in the September 19 Board meeting we approved the Master Plan capital projects 
including Phase D, discussion ensued at the June 6, July 10, and September 5 
meetings, and finally, the parking master plan was presented May 16. Sheppard 
reviewed the purpose for Phase D parking improvements including site walk-ability, bike 
parking, and ADA improvements as required in the ADA Transition Plan, drop off flow 
and congestion relief with a dedicated drop off/pickup lane, and improved wayfinding. A 
site analysis and existing conditions were reviewed. A milling and overlay of asphalt for 
the lot will be included in Phase D. Discussion ensued. 

Sheppard has also had preliminary discussions with the Village to add a traffic light to 
help participants safely cross the road to our center. The Village will be reviewing this 
option for the future. More bike racks will be added up front. 

The District is ready to move into the next phase which is to have them develop our 
design and construction document.

Director Leiner reviewed the timeline. Designs would go to the Board for approval 
before going out to bid. At that point, there would be concrete cost estimates versus the 
conceptual estimates. 



5

Bollard options were discussed and Altamanu will bring a couple options. The current 
bollards can be knocked over easily. 

Three to four parking spots will be lost for bike parking and a cue line. There was a 
study done on bike racks that we will refer to and add a couple spaces for buggies. 

Ongoing maintenance sealcoating was discussed. 

This project would start the day after 2018 camp ends giving the project the whole 
month of August with a total of six-nine weeks of work. Contractors are good at working 
in open lots. Wayfinding signs will help get patrons to the back lots during construction.

A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve the Altamanu, Inc. agreement 
for the schematic design, design development, construction documents, and 
construction management support for Phase D of the Takiff Center Parking Master Plan 
for a total of $48,520 as presented. Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. No 
further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Director Leiner entertained the option for solar lights in the back lot along the walkway. 
The Board stated that it was needed for safety. Solar lights are more economical than 
electric lights and are more sustainable. 

Approval of the Breakwater Sculpture Action Plan: Not needed due to dollar amount. 

Matters from the Public: There was no one wishing to address the Board. 

Other Business: A letter was sent to the residents requesting a tennis backboard at the 
October Board meeting. 

Adjourn to Closed Session: There was no reason to go into Executive Session. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Lutton moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:32 p.m. 
Commissioner Boron seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

            
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF DECEMBER 5, 2015 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 8:59 p.m. and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Vice President Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Steve Gaines, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Stefanie Boron, Commissioner Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 

Commissioners absent: 
Josh Lutton, Treasurer  
       
Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Dorfman

Matters from the Public: There was no one wishing to address the Board.

Action Items: 

Approval of Change Order for Removal of Underground Storage Tanks at Takiff:  
Executive Director Sheppard shared additional research received since the last 
meeting. There are two thousand gallon unregistered underground storage tanks that 
go past 1978 before former Director of Parks Rick Bold’s time and not noted in the 1989 
PDRMA survey. They need to be removed. Sheppard approved, within her purview, 
$18,000 to remove the tanks, haul them away, permits, and finally, fill the area. The 
unknown is tank leakage, which will not be confirmed until excavation occurs. 

Director Leiner stated that the state fire marshal evaluates the tanks during removal and 
then determines the course of action going forward including: area soil samples and 
return of test results. The marshal establishes who will supervise removal of the tanks, 
which will determine if we are good to go or need additional work down the road.

Sheppard put forth before the Board a contingency to get work done without stoppage. 
Remediation could happen immediately after tank removal with a contingency amount 
of $45,000. Based on the soil density, one may speculate little migration of material. 
The marshal is looking to see if the bottom of the tank rotted out. Staff does not feel the 
full $45,000 will be used; this amount is only to be used for remediation. 

In response to a commissioner question, Leiner disclosed that the tanks are evaluated 
and registered with the State of Illinois, soil samples taken, and are waiting for approval 
to move forward with tank removal. The removal should happen in the next four to six 
weeks. The remediated area will be covered with stone and asphalt installed in spring. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve a change order in the amount 
not to exceed $45,000 for any required remediation after the removal of the 
underground storage tanks at Takiff as presented. Commissioner Brooks seconded the 
motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 



2

 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: Lutton 

Approval of Employee Program and Facility Discounts:  Sheppard imparted that staff 
found a need to discuss part-time and commissioner discounts for our fitness center 
after she received many requests from part-time staff. Staff recommend a 50% discount 
keeping in mind that this is a policy. Procedurally, we will not allow staff to impact 
community use of the fitness area. Membership at our fitness center increases staff 
wellness and will attract quality applicants, as well as wellness for our commissioners.

Commissioner comments included benefit of wellness to staff, priority of members over 
staff for peak time usage, revisit commissioner discount in a year, commissioner 
membership is justified now as the center is new and commissioner experience and 
feedback is important. This discount would not apply to past commissioners.

All staff would receive 50% off; full-time staff would receive their fees back if they use 
the fitness center on an average of three times per week throughout the year as a 
wellness award. The refunded fees would be paid back from our PDRMA savings. 

Commissioners confirmed to leave in the commissioner discount and revisit once review 
of the success of the fitness center is complete. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Brooks to approve the updated Employee 
Program and Facility Discounts Policy as presented. Commissioner Gaines seconded 
the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Matters from the Public: There was no one wishing to address the Board.

Other Business: There is a Regular Board Meeting next week, which will include 
strategic planning. The Board meeting will be short with only written reports. The only 
action item is a state mandated update to our sexual harassment policy and ordinance, 
which needs to be passed before January 15, 2018.

Adjourn: Commissioner Gaines moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:13 p.m. 
Commissioner Boron seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 

































V. Financial Report

Glencoe Park District
December 2017 Board Meeting







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
November 2017

As of As of As of
11/30/2015 11/30/2016 11/30/2017

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 2,913,412 2,970,450 2,793,784 (1)

Wages (473,162) (480,421) (499,841)
Contractual (1,075,923) (963,599) (1,001,247)
Supplies (71,619) (78,227) (84,192)
     Net Surplus 1,292,708 1,448,203 1,208,504 (1)

Day Care Department
Revenue 572,714 659,455 710,918
Expense (480,255) (529,984) (547,589)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 92,459 129,471 163,329

Beach Department
Revenue 259,371 323,937 318,034
Expense (210,328) (236,599) (229,682)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 49,043 87,338 88,352

Boating Department
Revenue 72,015 106,360 114,828
Expense (93,096) (95,499) (111,515)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (21,081) 10,861 3,313

Beach/Boating Department Total: 98,199 91,665

Watts Department
Revenue 28,762 (2) 33,424 32,521
Expenses (115,897) (124,311) (122,116)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (87,135) (90,887) (89,595)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 21,283 22,710 25,243
Expense (760,698) (793,618) (842,328)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (739,415) (770,908) (817,085)

Parks Department
Revenue 15,231 27,463 2,585
Expense (763,286) (779,097) (846,755)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (748,055) (751,634) (844,170)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 1,101,192 1,149,446 1,169,778
Expenses (1,956,507) (1,541,395) (2,430,269) (2)

     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (855,315) (391,949) (1,230,491)

December. It is not an apples-to-apples comparison until December month end.
(2) Due to $1.1 million transfer to Master Plan Capital Fund 69

(1) Last year, winter registration revenues were collected in November, this year in



VI. Staff Reports

Glencoe Park District
December 2017 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Business Department Report 

December 2017 

FY2018/19 Budget and Capital Projects 
Staff continues to review, prepare, and update budget worksheets, as well as prioritize capital 
projects for the new fiscal year. Once winter registration is in full gear after December 6, it will 
give staff a much better understanding of projected year-end amounts. As in prior years, staff’s 
goal is that the first draft of the budget be distributed to the Board for review in late January. 

2017 Tax Levy Ordinance 
The 2017 Levy was filed with the Cook County Clerk’s office and is posted on our website. 

Program Registration 
Online registration for Winter Session/Camp programs began Wednesday, December 6 at 
7:00am. Walkup registration began the same day at 8:00am. Every plan and precautionary 
measure was again implemented by District staff to insure that the issues from previous 
registrations were not repeated. 

PDRMA Health Program Open Enrollment 
The open enrollment period for the PDRMA Health Program was conducted October 30 through 
November 21. Orientation meetings were held in early November for all full-time staff to inform 
them of the planned benefit changes to the health insurance program, as well as the dental plan, 
EAP program, Section 125 Plan, life insurance, and AFLAC program. 

Preparation for Calendar Year-End 
Staff will be attending several webinars conducted by Incode and by PDRMA related to the 
federal and state processing of W-2s, 1099s, and ACA 1095 forms that must be done after final 
payroll and accounts payable runs are completed for 2017. 

Timeclock Plus Implementation 
Staff continues to plug away with implementation issues as they arise, but each step brings us 
closer to the eventual “go live” date. The proxy reader in the Early Childhood Wing took longer 
than expected, but is now properly programmed and configured. This will allow staff to swipe 
into the timeclock with their assigned GPD security badges/tokens. 

Assetmaxx System Conversion 
Staff will be attending multiple presentations and trainings for the impending conversion of the 
Assetmaxx System, which is the web-based software system that is utilized by the District to 
record values of all assets over $5,000. This is also the system that is utilized by PDRMA for 
property insurance values for all of its member agencies. 

Submitted by: 
Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/Human Resources 



Glencoe Park District 
Recreation and Facilities Department 

December 2017 

Recreation Department Report: Bobby Collins 
As we approach the holiday season, the Recreation Team has the fitness bug! The fitness center 
is scheduled to open January 2. The team has planned preview days for December 16, 18, and 
27, where the community can try out the new state-of-the-art equipment and tour the facility. The 
grand opening celebration is planned for December 30 from 9:00am-12:00pm. 

Families braved the cold weather to attend Merry and Bright. The event was well attended and 
was a great start to the Thanksgiving celebration. Friday, November 24 Watts Ice Center opened 
for the season with great attendance all day, with visitors able to skate and play hockey during a 
sunny 60-degree opening day. The rink managed to stay open all weekend, even with high 
temperatures. This can be contributed to the investment in the rink mechanicals over the past few 
years. The rinks and facility have also been given a rejuvenated and fresh feel with a new interior 
floor and a brighter coat of paint. 

Winter registration opened to residents on December 6. Staff is still watching closely to see the 
longer-term effects of the introduction of full day kindergarten. With winter registration also 
began summer camp registration. Program managers in charge of camps have already sent out 
“welcome back” letters to returning employees and have begun recruiting new staff. New 
offerings this year include extended care options for preschool to help working families with 
childcare needs. 

Early Childhood: Naomi Garvett and Jessica Stockl   
Children’s Circle enrollment is currently at 64 children. The Jellyfish classroom has 15 children 
enrolled with 7 on the waitlist. The Frogs classroom has 14 children enrolled with 5 on the 
waitlist. The Starfish classroom has 14 enrolled. The Belugas classroom has 21 children enrolled 
with one on the waitlist. 

Children’s Circle Enrollment Comparison (FT=Full-time) 
Month/Year Jellyfish Frogs Starfish Beluga 

December 2017 15 (9 FT) 14 (12 FT) 14 (8 FT) 21 (18 FT)
December 2016 10 (8FT) 11 (5 FT) 18 (11 FT) 20 (19 FT)

There are a total of 89 children enrolled in the Early Learning Center for the 2017-2018 school 
year. There was 1 new enrollment this month. We conducted pre-registration for the 2018-2019 
school year on November 9 for all current families. As of December 1, enrollment is as follows: 

Enrollment 2017-2018 2016-2017 
2’s classes 27 23 
3’s classes 20 29 
4’s classes 42 26 

Total 89 78 



Athletics, Sports and Teen Camp: Chris Pietrini 
Chris Pietrini attended the Year Two program at IPRA Professional Development School. It was 
very beneficial, and topics covered included Learning from the Past and Setting Goals for the 
Future, Leadership vs. Management, Recruiting and Keeping Quality Staff and Effective 
Communication. Staff was able to network and meet other program managers to discuss creative 
problem solving outside of sessions. 

Chris and staff met with the Park District of Highland Park, Deerfield Park District and Lake 
Forest Park District to schedule games for 5th and 6th grade boys and girl’s leagues, as well as 
plan joint end of season tournaments. 

Chris worked with Hot Shots Sports to create a schedule for Parent and Tot and girls only sports 
classes. These will start after spring break and will be held at South School. 

House league drafts were held over a period of 2 nights. In an effort to increase parity, staff 
worked with our paid coaches as well as the volunteer coaches to try and form balanced teams. 

Basketball Registration Comparison 
League 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 
Boys 1st 37 26 39 
Boys 2nd 35 29 29 

Girls 1st/2nd 35 39 49 
Boys 3rd/4th 53 52 50 
Boys 5th/6th 28 45 46 
Girls 3rd/4th 38 36 34 

Girls 5th/6th  13 8 19 
Boys 7th/8th n/a n/a n/a 

Total  239 235 266 
    

4th Boys Travel 12 13 10 
5th Boys Travel 13 11 10 
6th Boys Travel 0 11 10 
5th Girls Travel 7 12 n/a 
6th Girls Travel 12 n/a 6 

Total  44 47 36 

Arts and Youth: Stephani Briskman 
On November 9, the School Day Off program brought 50 participants to Pump It Up in 
Glenview. On November 10, the 40 children enrolled in the School Day Off program went to 
Nickel City in Northbrook. On November 22, 34 children in the School Day Off program 
enjoyed Thanksgiving themed bowling at Pinstripes in Northbrook. 



2017 School Day Off Enrollment 2016 School Day Off Enrollment
9/21 (Bowling)- 32 9/30 (Bowling)- 44

10/6 (Didier Farms)- 47 10/3 (Didier Farms)- 43
10/9 (Lincoln Park Zoo)- 34 10/10 (Clay Play Day)- 31

11/9 (Pump It Up)- 50 10/12 (Lincoln Park Zoo)- 40
11/10 (Nickel City)- 40 11/10 (Libertyville Sports)- 54

11/22 (Turkey Bowling)- 34 11/11 (Pump it Up)- 48
11/23 (Turkey Bowling)- 52

Broadway Bounds production of Beauty and the Beast Jr. will be on January 20 and 21 at the 
Winnetka Community House. There are 80 children participating in this program. Tickets went 
on sale Wednesday, November 15 at 7:00am through Eventbrite.  

Broadway Bound Shows Tickets Sold 
Saturday, January 20 - 11:00am 177 
Saturday, January 20 - 2:30pm 274 
Sunday, January 21 - 2:30pm 204 
Sunday, January 21 - 5:00pm 201 

To culminate the fall semester, there is a Winter Dance Showcase Sunday, December 17, 2017 at 
2:00 pm at the Takiff Center Gymnasium. This is a great chance to showcase what they have 
learned throughout the fall semester. 

Little Footlighters, Kinderlighters, Jr. High Improv, and The Play’s the Thing will conduct in-
class performances for their families the week of December 18 during class. This is a great 
chance to showcase what they have learned throughout the fall semester. 

Special Events & Active Adults: Liz Visteen 
Snoopy Thanksgiving took place on Saturday, November 18 and was well received with over 40 
children and their parents. Participants watched the Charlie Brown Thanksgiving special on the 
new twelve foot movie screen while snacking on the same goodies Snoopy served: popcorn, 
pretzels, jellybeans, and toast; however, the Park District served Cinnamon Toast Crunch cereal 
instead of toast. Participants also made their own special watercolor picture and attached a 
silhouette of Charlie Brown & Snoopy. Snoopy himself made a very special appearance and took 
pictures with attendees. 

Merry & Bright Holiday Celebration was Wednesday, November 22 at Kalk Park. Despite the 
chilly temperature, over 500 guests had a wonderful time at the event. Activities included a hay 
ride around the neighborhood, pony rides, petting zoo, face painting, carnival games, hay maze, 
chips in the hay, live music from Shoot Out, and a special appearance from Rudolf, Tom the 
Thanksgiving Turkey, and Snoopy. At the end of the event children searched for toys and treats 
at the Merry & Bright Flashlight Hunt.   

Black Ice Friday was a busy opening day at the Watts Ice Center. Many attended the free event 
which included open skate and broom ball on the main rink, and open shoot on the studio rink. 
Staff handed out glow necklaces, glow eye glasses and glow bracelets to the 200 (200 in 2016) 
patrons who attended. Tom the Turkey also made a special appearance.  



Upcoming Fall events:
December 8: Teen Ice Night 
December 9: Gingerbread House Decorating 
December 21: Winter Solstice in cooperation with Friends of the Green Bay Trail 
December 31: Itty Bitty New Year 
January 6: Nature Encounters 
January 15: Watts Below Zero 
January 27: Messy Morning 

Fall Ceramics/Adults Enrollment 
As of Dec 1 2017 2016 

Adult Ceramics 60 31 
Youth Ceramics 59 63 
Teen Programs 9 6 
Adult Programs 42 0 

Takiff Center/Fitness: Adam Wohl & Bobby Collins 
Adam Wohl has officially joined the team as the Takiff and Watts facility manager and has hit 
the ground running. Adam’s primary focus for the upcoming month will be the opening of the 
new fitness center, training attendants, and developing personal training. Adam has been meeting 
with staff from all departments and is undertaking full time staff training sessions. 

Takiff Center Rental Comparison 
As of Dec 1 

2017 2016 

Birthday Parties $14,081 $20,531 
Facility Rentals $57,691 $61,067 

Total $71,772 $81,598 

Facility rentals continue to be marginally lower than last year, but birthday parties continued to 
trend lower, in part due to the loss of the Aiken room and competitive pricing from other 
community centers.

Watts Ice Center: Bobby Collins
Watts Ice Center opening weekend began Friday, November 24 with all-day public skate and 
open hockey, followed by a ‘Black Ice Friday’ special event. With temperatures in the 60’s the 
rink was well-attended with large crowds in the afternoon and evening. Pass and daily fees were 
$4,327 on opening day compared to $1,693 in 2016. Pass sales were noticeably strong and look 
to be trending to beat last year’s sales. New this season is the combo pass, which offers unlimited 
public skate and hockey. The combo pass was well received and accounts for 20% of pass 
revenue in 2017. 



As of Dec 1 2017 2016 
Daily Fees $1,896 $2,081 
Pass Sales $11,889 $9,908 

Rentals $18,240 $20,794 
Total $32,025 $32,783 

Four new Zamboni drivers were trained in the weeks leading up the facility opening. All 
preseason staff trainings were completed for cashiers, skate guards, and party attendants with an 
increased focus on customer service, revenue collection, and patron safety at the forefront.

Facility improvements, including the new building floor and fresh coat of paint impressed 
patrons on opening weekend. A big thank you to staff for theirs efforts to keep the rink opens 
during the warm and sunny opening weekend. 

Submitted by: 
Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation and Facilities 



Glencoe Park District 
Parks & Facilities Maintenance Report 

December 2017 

Administrative 
I have continued to oversee parking lot and fitness room projects. The projects are nearing 
completion; we are only waiting on the completion of a few punch list items. In addition, I have 
continued working on second round operating and capital budget submissions.  

I have continued to manage the removal and remediation necessary after the discovery of two 
Underground Fuel Storage Tanks in the parks yard. 

Grounds/Horticulture
The horticulture crew has continued to perform dormant pruning from the ground throughout the 
district. Planting beds have been cleared of all annual material. 

Parks Maintenance & Construction 
The sled hill fence was installed for the season at Watts Park. Tennis court windscreens have 
been secured for the winter. Staff trenched in a new electric line for the parks yard when it was 
discovered during the parking lot renovation that the existing electric main did not meet code 
standards. 

Staff completed the setup and breakdown of the Merry and Bright event. All the straw bales 
remaining from the hay maze were donated to the Glenview Park District for use on their historic 
farm. 

Staff has continued to balance seasonal tasks with routine maintenance such as; trash removal, 
leaf mulching, and park grooming and playground inspections. 

Facilities 
Working with the Recreation team, staff has completed the start-up process for the Watts Ice 
Rinks. The compressors are currently functioning properly keeping the ice sheet between 8 and 
15 degrees. 

The Watts facility was prepared for the season by painting, replacing light fixtures, installing a 
new counter for the coffee machine, and installing a new office lock. 

Staff continues to work on converting existing light fixtures to LED. All hallway lights in the 
ELC and the lights in the new Fitness Room have been converted to LED. The outdoor Watt’s 
facility lights have also been converted to LED. 

As we have previously discussed, LED light fixtures lower energy usage and have a significantly 
longer lifespan than the old style fluorescent or High Pressure Sodium. 

Staff has been busy working on the owner-installed items in the fitness room, including 
connecting the CAT 6 IT Cable and installing new TV’s. 



Athletic
Porto-lets have been removed for the season from all athletic fields. The Lacrosse goals have 
been removed from Sunken Park for the season. 

Equipment
Plows are in place on trucks and ready for the season. Several repairs have been made to the 
Zamboni since opening. 

Personnel
No Report 

Shared Services 
Village staff made multiple repairs on several vehicles this month. The older fleet vehicles have 
seen an increase in necessary maintenance this season. 

Submitted by: 
Chris Leiner, Director of Parks & Maintenance 



Glencoe Park District 
Marketing/Communications Report 

December 2017 

Social Media/Email 
We ended the month of October with 34,989 Facebook impressions (in 2016, we ended the 
month with 48,200 impressions). We now have 1,361 followers on Facebook, 774 followers on 
Twitter and 831 followers on Instagram. Glencoe Beach has 1,653 and Watts has 173 followers 
on Facebook.

We sent out several targeted email blasts, primarily focused on fall activities and special events. 

Time Sent Campaign Name Total
Sent

Open
Rate

Total
Unique
Opens

Mobile
Open
Rate

Desktop
Open
Rate

Click
Through

Rate

11/25/2017 Gingerbread House Decorating 614 44.50% 273 70.70% 29.30% 3.30%

11/22/2017 Today is Merry Bright 4953 24.40% 1158 63.60% 36.40% 3.70%

11/21/2017 Black Ice Friday 4954 22.00% 1048 59.10% 40.90% 3.40%

11/20/2017 Merry & Bright Reminder 4960 25.50% 1217 53.80% 46.20% 3.20%

11/16/2017 Snoopy Reminder 4964 24.70% 1177 53.50% 46.50% 8.70%

11/15/2017 Merry & Bright 4970 26.00% 1241 60.70% 39.30% 3.20%

11/14/2017 Watts Opens Soon 4976 25.80% 1235 48.00% 52.00% 10.00%

11/13/2017 Monday Beauty & The Beast 70 57.10% 40 42.30% 57.70% 57.50%

11/13/2017 Tuesday Beauty & Beast 47 66.00% 31 47.30% 52.70% 19.40%

11/10/2017 Preschool Camp Options 255 63.90% 163 63.20% 36.80% 17.80%

11/10/2017 Snoopy Thanksgiving 616 38.90% 239 71.60% 28.40% 25.10%

11/10/2017 Moving with Weights 121 32.50% 39 63.40% 36.60% 7.70%

11/3/2017 Chairs Yoga 121 30.60% 37 66.70% 33.30% 5.40%

Fitness Center Promotion 
Marketing for Glencoe Fitness is now underway. In addition to the new wayfinding signs, 
window decals, and membership booklet, we are sending a direct mail jumbo postcard to all 
Glencoe residents the first week of December. The month of December and January will also 
include weekly email blasts with information about various amenities and events (including the 
Preview Days and Grand Opening celebration). We also put flyers in every locker in the Early 
Childhood wing, with the goal to entice parents dropping off preschoolers to consider a 
membership. 

Special Events 
I worked closely with the Recreation Department to market Snoopy Thanksgiving, Merry & 
Bright, and Black Ice Friday. This included creating flyers, website graphics, posters, banners, 
and event signage for the event. I also generated email blasts and social media posts, as well as 
pitched the events to local reporters. 



Winter R
I am now
includes
updates,

Inside G
I worked
Library,
result is c
centerfol
four even
published
new nam

Submitte
Erin Maa

Registration
w working on

banners at W
and email bl

Glencoe
d with repres
and Family 
cleaner, with
ld will featur
nts from each
d three times

me: Inside Gl

ed by: 
assen, Manag

n
n Real-Time
Watts and Ta
lasts. 

entatives fro
Services to r
h an emphas
re a commun
h agency. Th
s per year (Ja
encoe.

ger of Marke

e Registration
akiff, social m

om the Villag
re-design Gl
is on readab
nity calendar
he communi
anuary, Apri

eting/Comm

n for winter 
media posts,

ge, School D
lencoe Quart
bility and gra
r, highlightin
ity newslette
il, Septembe

munications 

programs an
, website 

District,
terly. The en
aphics. The 
ng three to 
er will now b
er), so it has 

nd camp. Ad

nd

be
a

dvertising























VII. Executive Director Report

Glencoe Park District
December 2017 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Executive Director’s Report 

December 2017 

Year in Review 
At the Glencoe Park District, it is our mission to enrich lives and create memorable experiences 
by providing exceptional services, parks, programs, and facilities. Every day, we are proud of all 
we have accomplished in 2017.  

In 2017, the Glencoe Park District became National Gold Medal Finalist the first year applying. 
Founded in 1965, the Gold Medal Awards program honors communities in the U.S. that 
demonstrate excellence in parks and recreation through long-range planning, resource 
management, volunteerism, environmental stewardship, program development, professional 
development, and agency recognition. Agencies are separated into classes based on population 
and judged on their ability to address the needs of those they serve through the collective 
energies of citizens, staff, and elected officials. 

Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director for the Park District was honored at the IPRA/IAPD 
Conference as the Illinois Park Districts Professional of the Year. 

We are the North Shore Special Recreation Association (NSSRA) 2017 Partner Agency of the 
Year.

In 2017, we began the process of a new Strategic Plan, which will provide direction for the next 
3-5 years. 

We continue to use our Master Plan as our guide for park and facility development and this year 
was another big construction year for Glencoe Park District. Completed projects included West 
Playground (in cooperation with School District 35), Astor Playground, Takiff parking lot 
improvements and walking paths, Glencoe Fitness, and Watts Basketball Court renovation. 
Before we started each project, we solicited community input and secured competitive bids.  

We are excited to open the doors of the new Glencoe Fitness at Takiff on December 30. This is 
an amenity that has been requested for years and we are excited to offer a community fitness 
center with state of the art equipment. 

Glencoe Beach continues to serve the community with a quarter mile of shoreline to Lake 
Michigan. The warm summer resulted in Glencoe Beach taking in over $195,000 in daily 
revenue. Pearlman Boat House stored 150 personal watercrafts this summer, including Hobie 
Catamarans, kayaks, sailboats, and stand-up paddleboards. Beachgoers also rented Glencoe Park 
District water vessels at an astounding rate this summer. Over $17,000 in rentals were provided 
in the summer of 2017. This summer had the largest Beach Camp Out attendance with 186 
campers and we offered for the first time a summer Aquatic Camp at the beach, which was very 
popular.



2

Watts Ice Rink operates annually from the day after Thanksgiving through the end of February. 
This season’s opening day witnessed unusual 60 degree sunshine and attracted over 300 skaters 
to skate, play hockey, and enjoy our evening special event - Black Ice Friday. Opening weekend 
had over 600 skaters and hockey players come through the doors making for a fantastic start to 
the Watts season.  

Glencoe Park District strives to provide memorable experiences to members of the community 
through special events. In the last year, over 32 special events were offered to the community, 
many offered at no charge. New special events included Takiff Express Train Day, Nerf Battle, 
Snoopy Thanksgiving, The Great Mud Run, Beach Fire Party, and Merry and Bright. 
Glencoe Park District continues to innovate and provide unique program offerings to the 
community. New programs introduced this year include a robot design lab, drone and light saber 
building, girls sports class, curling, boys hip hop, video hip hop, extended day camps, personal 
training, mosaics, botanical drawing, watercolor, drawing for everyone, power skating, and shark 
bait.  

We continue to be a source for quality early childhood education and recreation. Our Children’s 
Circle full-day preschool and daycare for children six weeks until five years serves 64 
participants. The Early Learning Center with our popular half-day preschool serves 89 preschool 
students. This in addition to many enrichment programs provides many early childhood options 
to our families. 

Our Kid’s Club program continues to provide before and after school programming for students 
in grades K-6. Enrollment for that program is at almost 55 children, providing a much-needed 
level of support for working parents in the community.  

Glencoe Park District continues to solicit feedback from program participants and show 
responsiveness to patrons needs. Almost all recreation programs and facility users are surveyed 
on their experience. The agency has received positive feedback on the staff, facilities, and 
content of recreation programming among other areas.  

We also welcomed new members to our Recreation and Facilities team and Customer Service 
team. Even with these changes, the level of service to our participants has not skipped a beat and 
we continue to provide exceptional and timely customer service. The District also maintains a 
bond rating of Aa1. The current Park District tax rate is .585 and it makes up only 7.07% of the 
total tax bill for Glencoe residents. 

We continue to partner with other governmental agencies and non-profit organizations on 
committees and special events. Staff are actively involved in Village-wide Committees and 
groups including the Sustainability Committee, Active Transport Committee, Tudor Court 
Steering Committee, Glencoe Chamber of Commerce, and Rotary Club of Glencoe. We are 
proud to partner with over 35 different community organizations to bring a variety of volunteer 
opportunities and programs. 

I would like to thank the entire Board of Commissioners and Park District staff, for tirelessly 
working to meet our goals this year. Our success is the result of a hard-working team, dedicated 



3

to bringing the very best service and amenities to the people of Glencoe. We are also successful 
because of the support of the Glencoe community. We would like to thank the Glencoe 
community for supporting the Park District by visiting the beach, walking in the parks, playing at 
our playgrounds, attending our special events, sharing our stories, and participating in our 
programs. 

Fitness Center 
Construction is winding down in the Fitness Center and we are getting ready for opening day. 
The Fitness equipment will arrive December 14 and we will train staff on the equipment on 
December 15. Personnel are currently being hired for Glencoe Fitness to work as fitness 
attendants, personal trainers, or group fitness instructors. A post card is going out (attached) to 
all Glencoe households marketing the center. In addition, it appeared in the brochure and the 
Village joint publication, Inside Glencoe. We will also be giving our Glencoe Fitness T-shirts to 
the first 100 people to sign up for a membership! 

We will be having three free preview days when staff will be available to give tours, answer 
questions, and show the equipment: 

Saturday, December 16 | 11:am-2:00pm 
Monday, December 18 | 9:00am-7:00pm 
Wednesday, December 27 | 9:00am-7:00pm 

We will be having a Grand Opening Celebration on Saturday, December 30 from 9:00am-
12:00pm. Guests will be able to work out, learn how to track their workouts using our app, and 
take a tour of the facility. 

Starting on January 2, Glencoe Fitness will be open for business 5:30am-9:00pm Monday – 
Friday and 7:00am-5:00pm Saturday & Sunday. 

Members will have the ability to put their children in our childcare room Monday – Friday from 
9:00am-12:00pm. The times will be divided into 1.5 hour blocks of 9:00-10:30am or 10:30am-
12:00pm. We will accept reservations to the babysitting room 24 hours in advance using a 
scheduling app called Signup Genius. We will accept drop in participants, if there is room on the 
day of but will strongly recommend making reservations. The fee will be $9 per visit or a 10-
visit pass for $60. 

We are also in the process of hiring personal trainers that members can schedule work out 
sessions with. Members will not be able to bring in their own personal trainers. We will have 
more information on rates for members by the time we open. 

Takiff Parking Lot and Walking Path 
The walking path at Takiff is now complete. Five laps around equals one mile. The plantings in 
the bio swales will take place in the spring. 

The back parking lot where the skateboard park was located is finished. Staff that are assigned to 
lots at Takiff have been asked to park in that lot and then if there is overflow to fill the spots next 
to the skate park.



4

The back parking lot by maintenance is also finished with the exception of the area where the old 
tanks were discovered. As I mentioned last week, those tanks will be removed and any necessary 
remediation done. The hole will then be filled with compacted stone. Asphalting on this area will 
be done next spring along with an overlay and striping on the entire back area. 

Real-Time Registration 
The Recreation Department continues to be financially strong. Online registration for winter 
session and summer camp programs began on Wednesday, December 6 at 7:00am. Online 
registration went without a hitch. Between 7:00-8:00am, we had 277 web users (2016: 303 and 
2015: 278). The users signed up for 773 programs (2016: 861 and 2015: 724) with a total of 
$280,161 in revenue (2016: $285,109 and 2015: $313,163) taken in during that time frame. The 
total revenue for the first day of registration was $403,833 (2016: $418,711 and 2015: $409,394).

Budget Process 
We are in the mid-stages of budgeting for the next fiscal year. This includes our capital projects, 
program budgets, facility, and parks expenses. I have been meeting with each staff member to go 
over proposed budgets and the capital projects list. 

Partnership 
We are excited to once again partner with Glencoe Community Garden (GCG) to assist with 
winter composting. We believe that by working together we can continue to inspire awareness 
and interest in composting. GCG volunteers have built an attractive bin/crate from wood that we 
placed by the maintenance entrance at Takiff (closest to the garbage bins). The crate will stay in 
place for the winter months. On Sunday mornings, they will place plastic buckets inside the crate 
by 9:30am. From 9:30-11:30am, people can empty their kitchen scraps into the buckets. From 
11:30am-2:00pm, volunteers will bring full buckets to GCG to contribute to our cold composting 
piles. GCG will educate participants on what can be put into the buckets.  

Recreation Programs and Facilities 
Watts had a spectacular opening weekend at Watts due to the warm weather. The Facility, Parks, 
Business, and Marketing teams did an outstanding job working together to prepare the facility 
and staff for opening weekend. If you have not had a chance to go out there please make time to 
do so. 

We are once again offering Days Off School Programs for school-age children during Winter 
Break. This continues to be a very successful program that meets the needs for working parents. 

Goal Approval 
This is normally the time of year that we set goals for upcoming year. We are tabling goal 
development until the new Strategic Plan is complete. As in the past, goals are based off the 
District’s Master Plan, Strategic Plan, the District’s Mission and Vision Statements. Once the 
goals are approved, staff will work on objectives for the goals.  

NSSRA Facitiliy Update 
NSSRA and Northbrook Park District are exploring a partnership towards accomplishing 



5

NSSRA’s long-time goal to secure a suitable, permanent location with a partner agency, as 
outlined in its 2013 Capital & Facility Acquisition Plan. We are in the preliminary stages of this 
process and will update the Board of Directors, NSSRA families and staff, and the public as 
appropriate.

Freedom of Information Report 
There was one FOIA request this month from SmartProcedure requesting purchasing records. 
This was received on Friday, November 17 and responded to on Tuesday, November 21. 

Lisa Off 
I will be taking some vacation time sporadically the weeks of December 18 – 31. On the days I 
am not in the office, I will be available by cell phone and email.  

Future Meetings 
Special Projects and Facility Committee meeting | Tuesday, January 9 at 7:00pm 
Regular Board meeting | Tuesday, January 16 at 7:00pm 
IPRA Conference | January 18-20 

Happy Holidays and Healthy New Year! 

Submitted by: 
Lisa Sheppard, CPRP 
Executive Director 



Be a Charter Member of

Grand Opening Celebration December 30 at the Takiff Center!

READY TO JOIN?
Visit the Takiff Center for a membership 

application and a personalized tour!

$0 INITIATION FEE +
1 MONTH FREE

The $125 initiation fee will be waived if you join 
before January 31, 2018 PLUS we’ll give you a free 
month when you sign up for a 1-year membership!

GET A FREE TSHIRT
The first 100 people to sign up for Glencoe Fitness 

will get a commemorative t-shirt!
 



FREE PREVIEW DAYS
Join us for a free workout! Our fitness staff will be 
available to give tours, answer questions, and show 
you our equipment!

• Saturday, December 16: 11 AM-2 PM
• Monday, December 18:  9 AM-7 PM
• Wednesday, December 27:  9 AM-7 PM 

999 Green Bay Rd.
Glencoe, IL 60022

(847) 835-3030

PRSRT STD
U.S. Postage

P A I D
Glencoe, Illinois

Permit No. 2

FITNESS HOURS
Starting January 2, 2018

5:30 AM9 PM 
Monday-Friday

7 AM5 PM 
Saturday & Sunday

9 AM12 PM | SATURDAY, DECEMBER 30 | TAKIFF CENTER
Visit the new fitness area at the Takiff Center! Workout for 
free, learn how to track your workouts using our app, and 
take a tour of the facility! The first 100 people to sign up 
for a membership will get a free t-shirt!

Regular Hours Begin January 2 
Glencoe Fitness will be open seven days per week, beginning Tuesday, January 2.  

GRAND OPENING CELEBRATION

Get in shape at the Takiff Center!



X. Action Item A
Approval of Harassment Policy

Glencoe Park District
December 2017 Board Meeting



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
ORDINANCE NO. 877 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AN UPDATED SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 
FOR THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH PUBLIC ACT 

100-0554

WHEREAS, the Glencoe Park District is a non-home rule unit of local government; and 

WHEREAS, Public Act 100-0554 requires units of local government to adopt a 
resolution or ordinance establishing a sexual harassment policy that complies with the 
new statutory requirements for such policies; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District wish to amend 
Appendix B of its Full-time and Part-time Manuals to comply with P.A. 100-0554.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE GLENVIEW PARK DISTRICT THAT:

Section 1. Appendix B of the Glencoe Park District Full-time and Part-time Manuals 
are hereby amended to comply with Illinois Public Act 100-0554, which amended 
version is attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit A.

Section 2. The above “Whereas” recitals are incorporated into and made part of this 
Ordinance.

Section 3. All ordinances, resolutions, and regulations in conflict with this Ordinance 
are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 4. This Ordinance is effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED this 12th Day of December, 2017 

VOTE:  Ayes:      
  Nays:     
  Absent: 
  Abstentions: 

       ______________________________ 
       Dudley Onderdonk, President  
       Board of Park Commissioners  

       ATTEST: 

       ______________________________ 
       Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary   
[SEAL]      Board of Park Commissioners
4840 1456 6232, v. 1



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of 
Ordinance No. 877: 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AN UPDATED SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 
FOR THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH PUBLIC ACT 

100-0554

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 6:00 p.m. on the 12th

day of December 2017. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
ordinance were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 
said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 12th day of December 2017. 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners
Glencoe Park District

[SEAL]



1

Excerpt from Glencoe Park District Full and Part-time Personnel Manuals… 
Revised Version Proposed to the Board of Park Commissioners: December 12, 2017 

APPENDIX B:  POLICY PROHIBITING HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE

Each and every employee, officer, director, member, agent, guest and vendor of the 
Glencoe Park District, as well as every person using Park District property, shall refrain 
from the harassment, discrimination, or intolerance of any other person because of his 
or her race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation or identity, civil union partnership status,  handicap, association with a 
person with a handicap, disability, military status, unfavorable discharge from military 
service, or record of arrest, or genetic information.  Any such harassment, 
discrimination, and intolerant behavior may be illegal, unacceptable, and will not be 
tolerated by the Park District. 

Definition of Harassment in General 

Harassment on the basis of any protected characteristic is also strictly prohibited.
Under this policy, harassment is verbal or physical conduct that denigrates or shows 
hostility or aversion toward an individual because of his/her race, color, religion, national 
origin, age, disability, alienage or citizenship status, marital status, creed, genetic 
predisposition or carrier status, sexual orientation or identity, civil union partnership, or 
any other characteristic protected by law or that of his/her relatives, friends or 
associates, and that:  (i) has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or 
offensive work environment; (ii) has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering 
with an individual’s work performance; or (iii) otherwise adversely affects an individual’s 
employment opportunities.

Harassing conduct includes, but is not limited to:  epithets, slurs or negative 
stereotyping; threatening, intimidating or hostile acts; denigrating jokes and display or 
circulation in the workplace of written or graphic material that denigrates or shows 
hostility or aversion toward an individual or group (including through e-mail). 

Definition of Sexual Harassment 

Sexual harassment is a form of discrimination prohibited by Title VII of the U. S. Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and the Illinois Human Rights Act, and the State 
Officials and Employees Ethics Act.

It is the responsibility of each individual employee and elected or appointed 
officer or official to refrain from sexual harassment and it is the right of each 
individual employee and elected or appointed officer or official to work in an 
environment free from sexual harassment. 

Under the Illinois Human Rights Act State Officials and Employees Ethics Act, sexual 
harassment is defined as: 



2

Any unwelcome sexual advances or requests for sexual favors or any conduct of 
a sexual nature when: 

1) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or 
condition of an individual’s employment; 

2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the 
basis for employment decisions affecting such individual; or 

3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an 
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or 
offensive working environment. For purposes of this definition, the 
phrase “working environment” is not limited to a physical location 
where an employee is assigned to perform his or her duties and does 
not require an employment relationship. 

Conduct commonly considered sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to: 

  Verbal:  Unwanted sexual advances, sexual innuendoes, suggestive 
comments, insults, humor and jokes about sex, anatomy or gender-
specific traits, sexual propositions, threats, repeated requests for dates, 
or statements about other employees, even outside of their presence, of 
a sexual nature 

For example, if an individual most submit to unwelcome sexual conduct in 
order to receive an employment opportunity, this would constitute sexual 
harassment.  If an otherwise qualified individual is denied employment 
opportunities or benefits because he or she refused to submit to sexual
advances, or if such opportunities or benefits are given to another 
individual who, either voluntarily or under coercion, submits to sexual 
advances or rants sexual favors, this would constitute sexual harassment. 

 Non-Verbal:  Suggestive or insulting sounds (e.g., whistling, catcalls, 
smacking, kissing, noises), leering, obscene gestures, or sexually 
suggestive bodily gestures 

  Visual:  Posters, photographs, artwork, signs, buttons, shirts, stickers, 
pin-ups or slogans of a sexual nature 

  Physical:  Unwelcome or unwanted touching, hugging or kissing, pinching, 
brushing the body, sexual intercourse, or assault 

  Conduct Lacking Any Sexual Overtone:  Taking or sabotaging an 
employee’s tools, equipment or work product, vandalizing an 
employee’s personal property 



3

The most severe and overt forms of sexual harassment are easier to identify.  On the 
other hand, some sexual harassment is subtle and depends to some extent on an 
individual’s perception and interpretation.  The courts will assess sexual harassment by 
a standard of what would offend both the victim of the alleged harassment as well as 
the “reasonable person” in the alleged victim’s situation. 

An example of the subtlest form of sexual harassment is the use of endearments.  The 
use of terms such as “honey, darling, and sweetheart” is objectionable to many 
women who believe that these terms undermine their authority and their ability to deal 
with men on an equal and professional level.  Therefore, you should treat other 
employees with respect and not use names or terms that may be offensive. 

Words that you may intend as a compliment could be interpreted as sexual harassment.  
Below are three statements that might be made about the appearance of a woman: 

o   That’s an attractive dress you have on. 
o   That’s an attractive dress.  It really looks good on you. 
o   That’s an attractive dress.  You really fill it out well. 

The first statement appears to be simply a compliment while the last statement may be 
perceived as sexual harassment.  The main difference between the statements is the 
wording used to express the general idea that the woman is wearing a nice dress.
Therefore, choose words carefully and do not use a tone of voice that is offensive or 
sexually suggestive.  The words you choose and the tone of voice that you use may be 
the difference between a compliment and sexual harassment.  To avoid the possibility 
of offending another person, it is best to treat others with respect and to err on the side 
of caution. 

Sexual harassment frequently involves a man harassing a woman, but it can also 
involve a woman harassing a man or harassment between members of the same sex if 
the harassment occurs because of the victim’s sex, sexual identity, or sexual 
orientation.

Definition of Religious Harassment 

Title VII also prohibits employees from being harassed because of his or her religious 
beliefs.  Religious harassment includes, but is not limited to: (1) hostility towards a 
person because of their religion; and/or (2) proselytizing because of that person’s 
sincerely held religious beliefs.   

Hostility based religious harassment includes instances where the employee is 
antagonized, ridiculed, and harassed because of his or her religious beliefs or lack 
thereof, either by coworkers or supervisors. Hostility is defined as any comment or 
behavior directed against a religious belief. These may be comments meant to mock or 
undermine an employee's deeply held belief. Whether these remarks are made by 



4

coworkers or supervisors, they are prohibited under Title VII and are considered 
religious harassment prosecutable by law. 

The second type of religious harassment, proselytizing, tends to arise when a coworker 
or supervisor “preaches” to an employee, and the employee perceives that behavior to 
be unwanted and offensive, which may result in a hostile environment.  This form of 
harassment can take the form of comments, unwanted or repeated invitations to a 
religious event or organization, or the dissemination of religious literature or website 
content.

Definition of Intolerance 

Intolerance is defined as a lack of toleration or an unwillingness or refusal to tolerate or 
respect contrary opinions or beliefs and/or persons of different races, color,  national 
origin, ancestry, religions, age, sex, sexual orientation or identity, marital status, civil 
union partnership status, military status, disability, or any other characteristic protected 
by law.

Procedures for Filing a Complaint 

You are encouraged to immediately report any incident of harassment, discrimination, 
or intolerant behavior in the workplace that is prohibited by this policy, so that the Park 
District can respond promptly and take appropriate action.  You should report 
harassment, discrimination, and intolerant behavior regardless of who the offender may 
be or whether or not you are the intended victim.  If the Park District’s investigation 
substantiates your complaint, the reported employee or officer or official may be 
subject to disciplinary action, as appropriate, up to and including dismissal or removal 
from office. The Park District will not retaliate against you for making a complaint, even 
if the complaint is not substantiated, provided that you made the complaint in good faith.
In addition, the Park District will not retaliate against any witness or other person 
supporting a claim of harassment, discrimination, and intolerant behavior or otherwise 
cooperating with an investigation of workplace harassment, discrimination, and 
intolerant behavior if his or her participation is made in good faith. 

If you witness or experience harassment in the workplace that is prohibited by this 
policy, you should respond to the incident(s) as directly and firmly as possible by clearly 
communicating your disapproval of the conduct to the offending person, your 
Supervisor, and/or the Executive Director.  You should also document or record each 
incident (what was said or done, by whom, the date, time and place, and any witnesses 
to the incident).  Documentation can include letters, notes, memos, and telephone 
messages.  It is not necessary that the harassment be directed at you for you to make a 
complaint.  To the greatest extent possible, the Park District will keep your complaint 
confidential.

Your response to harassment in the workplace may include any or all of the following 
steps:



5

Direct Communication with Offender:  If harassment, discrimination, or 
intolerant behavior occurs in the work-place, you should directly and 
clearly express your objection to the offending person(s) regardless of 
whether or not the behavior is directed at you.  If you are the target or 
subject of such harassment, discrimination, or intolerant behavior, 
employee, you should clearly state that the conduct is unwelcome and the 
offending behavior must stop.  Your initial response may be oral or written, 
but you should document your objection.  If subsequent communication to 
the offending person is necessary, it should be made in writing. 

Report to Supervisory and Administrative Personnel:  At the same 
time that you communicate directly with the offending person, you should 
promptly report the offending behavior to your immediate Supervisor or 
the Executive Director, especially if you feel threatened or intimidated by 
the offending person.  If the subject employee is your immediate 
Supervisor, you should report the problem to the next level of supervision 
or the Executive Director.  If the subject employee is the Executive 
Director, you should report the matter to the Board of Park 
Commissioners.  Any supervisor who receives a report of harassment, 
discrimination, or intolerant behavior must immediately notify the 
Executive Director.  The Executive Director or his designee will 
immediately investigate the complaint and take appropriate corrective 
action if the complaint is substantiated.  All employees must cooperate 
with any investigation by the Executive Director or his designee of a 
complaint of harassment, discrimination, or intolerant behavior.

Report to Executive Director/Board of Park Commissioners:  An 
employee may also report any incidents of harassment, discrimination, or 
intolerant behavior that is prohibited by this policy directly to the Executive 
Director.  The Executive Director or his designee will immediately 
investigate the complaint and take appropriate corrective action when a 
complaint is substantiated.  If your complaint alleges harassment, 
discrimination, or intolerant behavior by the Executive Director, you should 
immediately report the incident or incidents in writing directly to the Board 
of Park Commissioners.  One member of the Board or the Board’s
designee will conduct the investigation and appropriate action will be 
taken when an allegation is determined to be valid.  At no time will 
personnel involved in the alleged harassment, discrimination, or intolerant 
behavior conduct the investigation. All employees must cooperate with 
any investigation of workplace harassment, discrimination, or intolerant 
behavior.

Resolution Outside the Park District:  Most complaints concerning 
harassment in the workplace can be resolved within the Park District.  
However, you have the right to file a formal charge with the Illinois 



6

Department of Human Rights (IDHR), contact information for which is 
set forth in the “Administrative Contacts” section of this policy, or 
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC).  A complaint 
with IDHR must be filed within 180 days of the alleged incident(s).  A 
complaint with the EEOC must be filed within 300 days of the alleged 
incident(s).

If you make a complaint alleging harassment against a member, agent, guest, or 
vendor, the Executive Director will investigate the incident(s) and determine the 
appropriate action, if any.  Every reasonable effort will be made to protect you from 
further contact with such person.  You should recognize, however, that the Park District 
has limited control over the actions of non-employees. 

If you are suddenly transferred to a lower paying job or passed over for promotion, or if 
other terms and conditions of your employment are changed to your disadvantage after 
filing a complaint with IDHR or EEOC, you may also file a retaliation charge.  A 
complaint of retaliation must be filed with the IDHR within 180 days of the alleged 
retaliation or within 300 days of the alleged retaliation if the complaint will be made with 
the EEOC. 

If you have been physically harassed, threatened or assaulted while on the job you may 
also have grounds for criminal charges.  You should contact the State’s Attorney Office 
for further information. 

False and Frivolous Complaints 

A false and frivolous charge refers to a situation where the accuser is using a 
harassment, discrimination, sexual harassment, or intolerance complaint to accomplish 
some end other than stopping behavior in the workplace.  It does not refer to charges 
made in good faith that cannot be proven.  Given the seriousness of the consequences 
for the accused, a false and frivolous charge is a severe offense that may result in 
disciplinary action up to and including dismissal or removal from office.

Retaliation is prohibited 

The Glencoe Park District is sensitive to the feelings of its employees and will make 
every reasonable effort to conduct an investigation in a responsible and confidential 
manner.  If you feel uncomfortable discussing harassment with the Executive Director, 
or if you believe the Executive Director is not enforcing this policy, you are encouraged 
to bring the matter directly to the Board of Park Commissioners.  The Park District 
prohibits retaliation against any individual who reports discrimination, harassment, or 
intolerant behavior, or participates in an investigation of such reports.  Retaliation 
against an individual for reporting harassment, sexual harassment, discrimination, or 
intolerant behavior or for participating in an investigation of such reports is a serious 
violation of this policy and will be subject to disciplinary action.  You will not face 
retaliation if you, in good faith, bring such conduct to Supervisory staff, the Executive 



7

Director or the Board of Park Commissioners attention nor will you face retaliation if 
you, in good faith, testify, assist or participate in the investigation of your complaint.
Employees or officers or officials that are found to have committed the conduct that is 
prohibited by this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including 
dismissal or removal from office. 

If an employee believes that he or she has been retaliated against for resisting or 
reporting harassment, the employee should report such retaliation in the same 
manner as is provided for reporting harassment in the workplace, set forth above.  
A complaint based on retaliation also may be filed with the IDHR or EEOC.  Such a 
complaint of retaliation must be filed with the IDHR within 180 days of the alleged 
retaliation or within 300 days of the alleged retaliation if the complaint will be made with 
EEOC. Persons who report allegations of sexual harassment or retaliation for 
reporting or resisting sexual harassment also may have whistleblower 
protections under the State Officials and Ethics Act, the Illinois Whistleblower 
Act, and the Illinois Human Rights Act. 

Administrative Contacts 

If you believe that your complaint of harassment or discrimination was not properly 
investigated or handled or you believe that you are being retaliated against for filing a 
complaint, testifying, assisting or participating in an investigation, or you wish to pursue 
other means of investigation, you may contact: 

Illinois Department of Human Rights Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission
(312) 814-6200 Chicago (312) 353-2713 Chicago 
(312) 263-1579 TDD Chicago (800) 669-3362 
(217) 785-5100 Springfield (800) 800 3302 TDD 

     (217) 785-5119 TDD Springfield  

4836-0417-9032, v.  1 



IX. Strategic Plan Discussion

Glencoe Park District
December 2017 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District
December 12, 2017



• Overview of Strategy
• Mission, vision and values review
• Strengths and weaknesses
• Opportunities and threats
• Balanced Scorecard
• Development of Strategic Themes



Checklist for Strategy Development

• What are the key process steps?
• Who are the key participants?
• What are your short and longer term planning time

horizons?
• How do you ensure the plan addresses: SWOT, major

shifts in technology, markets, customers, etc., long
term organizational sustainability, your ability to
execute the plan?

• What are the key objectives and timeline?
• How do your strategic objectives address innovation,

and balance the needs of all stakeholders



How do you develop and deploy action plans?
How do you ensure resource availability?
How do you account for shifts and changes?
What is your key human resource plan to accomplish
objectives?
What are your key performance measures or indicators for
tracking performance?
How do you connect employees with the Plan?



• Make it strategic and not tactical
• Start at an organizational level
• Take into account organizational workload
• There is no need to have a thousand strategies
• Measure success
• Institutionalize the process; making it meaningful
• Success is dependent upon employee engagement
• Annual review
• Measuring results



• Describes the overall purpose of an organization: what we do, who
we do it for, and how and why we do it. It also answers the
question: what is our business?

• Sets the boundaries of the organization’s current activities.
• Is the starting point in developing a shared vision.



• We exist to (primary purpose, need served, or problem solved):

• For (primary customers):

• In order to (core services offered):

• So that (long term outcomes determining success):



• Simple and clear
• Succinct
• Distinguishes from others
• Inspires growth and change
• Long term in nature
• Easy to understand and communicate



Enriching lives and creating memorable
experiences by providing exceptional services,
parks, programs, and facilities.

Is it up to date?
Is the mission relevant to constituents/customers?



• Describes an ideal future.
• Reflects the essence of an organization’s mission and values.
• Answers the question, what impact do we want to have on society?
• Unites an organization in a common, coherent strategic direction.
• Conveys a larger sense of organizational purpose, so that

employees see themselves as “building a cathedral” rather than
“laying stones.”



• Concise
• Appeals to all stakeholders
• Verifiable?
• Feasible?
• Inspirational
• Paints a picture through words



We are committed to become the most innovative,
customer driven, and fiscally responsible park
district for current and future generations.



Glencoe Park District Values (S.P.I.R.I.T.)

• Safety
• Passionate
• Integrity
• Responsiveness
• Innovative
• Team oriented



• Reinvestment in the infrastructure
• Community support (no small feat)
• Park District leadership
• Overall workforce competency
• Programming variety
• Teamwork
• Organizational trust



• Staffing levels
• Internal communication
• Identification of service levels
• Deployment of desired culture through all levels of the

organization
• Saying yes
• Continuously check in on employee morale
• Adult programming
• Competitive environment



• Communication with residents
• Sustainable practices
• Extend facility use (ice and beach)
• Encourage biking
• Connectivity
• Improved partnerships



• Property tax freeze
• Minimum wage
• Ability to attract part time staff
• Continuous higher expectations
• Do we really need the best of everything…there may be another way

to look at things?
• 60 85 year olds will feel financial pinches…houses may look tired
• We need to provide information about resident expectations. If you

expect more, we need funding to provide it
• Competitive environment
• Ability to maintain the infrastructure
• Staff retention
• Competitive environment
• Staffing levels



• Shifts in technology
• Changes in demographics
• Changes in customer preferences
• Industry trends
• HR requirements
• Ability to execute the plan, financially and organizational

capacity



• Connection with active adults
• Increased efforts in community engagement and outreach;

intentional efforts in increasing minority populations
• Importance of social equity and underrepresented

populations
• Part time staffing issues
• Diminishing number of recreation professional staff
• Issues related to climate changes
• Stormwater management
• Pop up opportunities
• Bike sharing
• Sustainable practices
• Charging stations, electronic cars



• Connection with health, wellness, fitness
• Trails and connectivity
• Partnerships to augment offerings
• Traditional sports decrease
• Environmental program increase
• Outdoor recreation growth
• Elevated marketing sophistication; social media
• Use of data for decision making
• Increased alternative revenue streams
• Emphasis on workplace environment
• Trouble engaging active adults
• Earned revenue strategies



Strategic Themes (Goals)
Strategic Objectives
Strategic Measures
Strategic Initiatives



Mission,
Vision,
Guiding

Principles

Strategic Themes

Strategic Objectives

Measures

Strategic Initiatives



Customer Perspective
• Product/service attributes (price,

programs, quality, availability)
• Relationship (customer loyalty)
• Service (access mechanisms,

standards, requirements, and
encounters)

• Image

Financial Perspective
• Productivity
• Growth
• Financial results
• Cost recovery
• Tax versus non tax ratio
• Alternative revenue growth

Internal Perspective
• Operations Management (program

development, design and maintenance
practices, managing processes)

• Customer Management processes (support
systems and use of technology)

• Innovation processes
• Regulatory and Social processes (safety,

environmental)

Learning and Growth Perspective
• Human capital (skill sets, needed

competencies)
• Information capital (management of

organizational knowledge; leveraging
technology)

• Organization capital (work environment,
culture, leadership system)



The Balanced Scorecard Approach to 
Strategy

Addresses the leadership infrastructure
Kaplan and Norton in the early 1990’s
Bridge to the master plan
The four perspectives: customer, financial, internal business

support, and employee learning and growth
Cause and effect relationships
Building a Strategy Map



• Customer
customer satisfaction
customer retention
market share
new customer acquisition

• Financial
productivity

revenue growth
net operating revenues
ratio of tax/non tax

• Internal Business
new services/programs
process improvement
internal customer

satisfaction
re work dollars
research and development

Learning and Growth
employee satisfaction

employee retention
training and skills



Park District of Oak Park Strategy Map

Customer

Perspective

Financial
Perspective

Internal Business
Perspective

Growth/
Development

Perspective

Customer Focus

Financial Strength

Organizational Excellence and Ongoing Infrastructure, Maintenance and Enhancements

Staff Excellence

Foster a Culture of
Innovation

Foster a Culture of
Innovation

Foster a Culture of
Continuous Learning
Foster a Culture of

Continuous Learning

Sustainable PracticesSustainable Practices Pro active and
Systematic Approach

Pro active and
Systematic Approach

Align Resources
Efficiently

Customer LoyaltyCustomer Loyalty

Optimize Return on 
Investment

Leadership and
Development of Staff

Leadership and
Development of Staff

Sustainable
Operations Plan

Memorable
Experiences
Memorable
Experiences

Evaluation of Systems

Anticipating Future
Need

Anticipating Future
Need

Maximize
Funding

Opportunities

Seek SynergySeek Synergy Leverage TechnologyLeverage Technology
Innovative Operational

Excellence
Innovative Operational

Excellence



Garland Strategy Map

Customer

Perspective

Financial
Perspective

Internal Business
Perspective

Learning and
Growth

We Care

Financial Sustainability

Organizational Excellence

Employee Development

Training Opportunities Fostering Creativity

Best Practice
Approaches
Best Practice
Approaches

Provide Quality
Services

Provide Quality
Services

Financial Responsibility 

Positive Work
Environment

Revenue Growth

Customer
Responsiveness

Customer
Responsiveness

Collaborative and
innovative approaches

WOWWOW

Efficient Use or
Resources

Leveraging TechnologyLeveraging TechnologyMarketing
Sophistication

Marketing
Sophistication



Bend Park and Recreation District Strategy Map

Customer
Perspective

Financial
Perspective

Internal Business
Perspective

Growth/
Development

Perspective

Community Connection

Financial Stewardship

Operational Excellence

Empowered and Prepared Workforce

Develop LeadersDevelop Leaders Encourage Creativity
and Innovation

Encourage Creativity
and Innovation

Create A Borderless
Organization

Create A Borderless
Organization

Provide Exceptional
Customer Service

Provide Exceptional
Customer Service

Maintain Financial
Stability

Respond to User
Expectations

Respond to User
Expectations

Expand
Partnerships

Expand
Partnerships

Take Care of What We
Have

Think StrategicallyThink Strategically

Invest in the Future

Analyze and
Adapt to
Changing

Community
Need

Analyze and
Adapt to
Changing

Community
Need

Improve Business 
Practices

Strengthen
Community
Awareness

Strengthen
Community
Awareness



d• Align Resources with Community Need
• Take Care of What We Have
• Invest in the Future

a)

• Cost recovery goals (q)
• Annual cost savings (a)
• % of non tax revenue (q)
• Revenue growth (q)
• Return on investment for new facilities (a)

• Nurture Community Connections
• Improve Customer Experience
• Optimize Program and Facility Mix

• % Space utilization per season (q)
• Partner satisfaction (a)
• Program success rate q)
• Overall customer satisfaction (q)
• Market penetration of programs

and services (q)

Customer Centered

Fiscal Agility

Improvement through
Collaboration and

Innovation

Continuous Improvement
Through an Empowered

Team

• Borderless survey satisfaction (a)
• % of key processes improved
• Carbon footprint (a)

• Create a Borderless Organization
• Excellence in Innovative Operational

Management

• Develop an Empowered Staff
• Create a Culture of Continuous

Improvement
• Foster A Culture Of Innovation

• Employee satisfaction (a)
• Quantified savings from

Improvements (a)
• Innovation assessment (a)

Measures
A=annually Q=quarterly

ObjectivesThemes

Cu
st

om
er

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
In

te
rn

al
Le

ar
ni

ng
an

d
Gr

ow
th

Elmhurst Park District Strategy Map



Milwaukee Recreation Division Strategy Map

Customer

Perspective

Financial
Perspective

Internal Business
Perspective

Learning and
Growth

Exceeding Customer Expectations

Financial Sustainability

Organizational Excellence

Staff Empowerment

Execute Thinking
Differently

Cultivate Personal and
Professional Growth

Create a Borderless
Organization

Create a Borderless
Organization

Customer Accessibility,
including Affordability
Customer Accessibility,
including Affordability

Establish Best Practices

Develop a Work
Environment that

Promotes
Accountability and

Ownership

Maximize Funding 
Opportunities

Create Memorable
Experiences

Create Memorable
Experiences

Building Brand and Image

Analyze and Adapt to
Changing Community

Need

Analyze and Adapt to
Changing Community

Need

Invest in the Future

Strengthen Internal
And External

Communication

Strengthen Internal
And External

Communication

Streamline Critical
Processes

Streamline Critical
Processes



• Customer
• Financial
• Internal Business
• Learning and Growth



Staff review of strategic objectives and initiatives


	Agenda
	Minutes of November 21, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes of December 5, 2017 Special Board Meeting
	Voucher List of Bills 11/17/17-12/8/17
	Financial Report
	Business Dept Report
	Recreation/Facilities Dept Report
	Parks/Maintenance Dept Report
	Marketing/Communications Dept Report
	Executive Director's Report
	Approval of Ordinance No. 877 Sexual Harassment Policy
	Strategic Planning Workshop

